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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

DESIGNATION FORM
(i be used by counsel or pro se plaintiff to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of assignment to the appropriate calendarj
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215-545-4870
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

ERNESTINE WIGGS
520 W. 661 Avenue
Philadelphia, PA 19126

Plaintiff

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
d/b/a PHILADELPHIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16™ FI,
Philadelphia, PA 19102

and

CORPORAL MARLO HOLMON
Individually, & in her official capacity as

a Corporal for the
PHILADELPHIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16® FL
Philadelphia, PA 19102

and

LIEUTENANT MATTHEW
GILLESPIE
Individually, & in his official capacity as

a Lieutenant for the

X

Civil Action No.;

Jury Trial of Twelve (12) Jurors Demanded
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PHILADELPHIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16® FLL
Philadelphia, PA 19102

and

CORPORAL MEGAN BOLOGNONE
Individually, & in her official capacity as

a Corporal for the
PHILADELPHIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16" FL
Philadelphia, PA 19102

and

SERGEANT ANTHONY MASSARO
Individually, & in his official capacity as

a Sergeant for the
PHILADELPHIA POLICE
DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16" FL
Philadelphia, PA 19102

and

CORPORAL ZACHARCENKO
Individually, & in his official capacity as

a Corporal for the

PHILADELPHIA POLICE

DEPARTMENT

1515 Arch St, 16® FL

Philadelphia, PA 19102
Defendants

X

CIVIL ACTION COMPLEAINT

PARTIES

Page 5 of 21
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1. Plaintiff, Ernestine Wiggs, is an adult individual, residing at 520 W 66th Ave,
Philadelphia, PA 19126. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was employed by
Defendant, the Philadelphia Police Department, as a Correctional Officer, Plaintiff has
worked at the PPD since April 11, 1994. Plaintiff has over 24 years of experience and is
an exceptional correctional officer with commendations from her previous commanding
officers over the years. Plaintiff suffers from rheumatoid arthritis and asthma, a condition
that causes inflammation in her joints, which makes it painful and difficult for Plaintiff to
move about.

2. Defendant, the Philadelphia Police Department, is a government agency that
conducts business in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is headquartered at 750
Race Street Philadelphia, PA 19106. The PPD is the nation's fourth largest police
department, with over 6300 sworn members and 800 civilian personnel. It is the primary
law enforcement agency responsible for serving Philadelphia County, extending over 140
square-miles in which approximately 1.5 million reside.

3. Defendant, Corporal Marlo Holmon, at all times material herein, acted
individually, as well as in her individual capacity as an agent, servant, workman, or
employee of the Philadelphia Police Department acting under the color of State law.

4. Defendant, Lieutenant Matthew Gillespie, at all times material herein, acted
individually, as well as in his individual capacity as an agent, servant, workman, or
employee of the Philadelphia Police Department acting under the color of State law.

5. Defendant, Lieutenant Megan Bolognone, at all times material herein, acted
individually, as well as in her individual capacity as an agent, servant, workman, or

employee of the Philadelphia Police Department acting under the color of State law.
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6. Defendant, Sergeant Anthony Massaro, at all times material herein, acted
individually, as well as in his individual capacity as an agent, servant, workman, or
employee of the Philadelphia Police Department acting under the color of State law.

7. Defendant, Corporal Zacharcenko, at all times material herein, acted individually,
as well as in his individual capacity as an agent, servant, workman, or employee of the
Philadelphia Police Department acting under the color of State law.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. The above paragraphs are incorporated herein by reference.

9. Jurisdiction in this Honorable Court is based on federal question 28 U.S.C. §1331;
supplemental jurisdiction over state law claims is granted by 28 U,S.C. §1367.

10. Venue is proper in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, as the facts and
transactions involved in the discrimination complained of herein occurred in large part in
this judicial district.

11. Plaintiff has exhausted her administrative remedies and obtained a Right to Sue
Letter from the EEOC. (Exh. A).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

12. The above paragraphs are incorporated herein by reference,

13. The PPD, in a number of unlawful, intimidating and discriminatory acts, created a
discriminatory and hostile work environment for Plaintiff.

14. Plaintiff has worked as a Correctional Officer for the Philadelphia Police
Department for 25 years. Her performance has always been exemplary, showing
extraordinary courage and bravery in the line of her work.

15. Plaintiff started experiencing harassment from her superiors in January of 2016.
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16. On or around April 2016, Plaintiff was on her post doing her job when Corporal
Holmon (Badge #8037) approached her to tell her that she was re-assigning her to the
female block. Plaintiff was not notified beforehand and felt that this was a form of
harassment by her superior to make it difficult for her to do her job efficiently.

17. On or around May of 2016, Plaintiff went to talk to Corporal Holmon about how
she feels that she has been treated unfairly by her, Holmon stated to Plaintiff that she had
gone home to speak with her husband and realized she had been unfair to Plaintiff in her
treatment and orders to her at work,

18. Corporal Holmon told Plaintiff that she only made Plaintiff take on more
responsibilities because she felt that Plaintiff could do the work more thoroughly, but that
was done without concern and thorough consideration of Plaintiff’s workload and stress,

19. Despite the talk, Plaintiff continued to suffer disparaging treatment at work from
her superiors.

20. On or around May of 2016, the facility where Plaintiff worked had flooded with
what appeared to be brown water. Plaintiff noticed that the odor was very strong,
smelling of mildew and sewage. Even Plaintiff’s coworkers who worked in another area
of the department could smell the odor. Plaintiff’s corporal was aware of the strong odor
from the flood and reported it to the lieutenant,

21. The prolonged period of smelling the mildew and sewage odor was too much for
Plaintiff, and she experienced nausea as well as lightheadedness. She had to leave the
office multiple times in order to get fresh air and felt sick throughout the time that she

was working.
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22. Upon information and belief, Corporal Holmon saw that Plaintiff was not feeling
well and condescendingly told her that she only had two options, which was to continue
working or go to the “comp clinic” for police cotrectional officers.

23. Plaintiff’s lieutenant then yelled at her and commanded Plaintiff to use her sick
time and to go to the emergency room at Jefferson Hospital. Plaintiff assumed that since
the lieutenant was new to the department, he didn’t know that the usual practice is for
officers to go to the comp clinic at Hahnemann. She told him so, but he refused her
request to go to the comp clinic and instead forced her to go to the emergency room. He
even had her supervisor drive her to Hahnemann,

24. Plaintiff felt that the chain of events was in violation of her HIPAA rights and the
usual protocol that her department follows, so she called her safety office to report the
situation.

25. When Plaintiff arrived at the hospital, even the nurses there told her that she was
supposed to be at the comp clinic and not at the emergency room.

26. On December 14, 2016, Plaintiff was assigned to the Female Block with Officer
Graves. She was approached by Corporal Holmon, who told her to take a walk with her.
Plaintiff was on suicide watch and could not abandon her post. Holmon told her that she
had two buses in the bay, one with 32 males and the other with 15 females. She
specifically wanted Plaintiff to do a search for the female bus.

27. There were other female officers that the corporal could have asked to complete
the search which would not have hindered their post or job, but she chose to ask Plaintiff
to give up her post, despite being on suicide watch, thus forcing Plaintiff to abandon her

post on suicide watch, and pufting the prisoner’s safety in jeopardy.
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28. Plaintiff was shocked to see that Corporal Holmon was smirking. She then put
Plaintiff’s post in abandoned status.

29. Plaintiff was also often skipped over for overtime. Usually, senior members are
given preference for overtime, as well as choice of post. However, Plaintiff has seen
officers with less seniority than her being offered overtime and choice of post.

30. On or around December of 2016, Plaintiff found herself in a situation with a
hostile prisoner. At around 4:45 or 5 p.m., the prisoner was escorted back to B-Block
after court. However, the prisoner refused to go into his cell. The prisoner then grabbed
ahold of her partner and started to punch him on his head and body. He then started to
choke him. Plaintiff acted quickly when she saw what was happening and tried to get the
prisoner off her partner. Plaintiff had handcuffs already in her hands to restrain the
prisoner once he was under control. In their scuffle, Plaintiff used force to stop the
prisoner.

31. Holmon badgered Plaintiff about filling out a Use of Force form for what had
happened and for using physical force on the prisoner, even though Plaintiff already
knew the procedure.

32, Plaintiff filled out the Use of Force form with all the details that she remembered,
including what she had to do to save her partner, what she saw, and the officers who were
at the scene. However, before she could finish filling out her personal information on the
form, Corporal Holmon told her to head to Central Detective for the interview, the usual
procedure when there is an altercation with a prisoner,

33. About a day or two after Plaintiff handed in the Use of Force to Corporal Holmon

to review, she approached Plaintiff with documents for her to sign. Plaintiff refused to
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sign without knowing what the papers were for, as the corporal was seemingly hiding the
summary of the papers while pointing directly to the signature line. Plaintiff realized it
was her Use of Force form after reading the document, but was no longer the same as the
one she handed in. Holmon told Plaintiff to just sign the form to affirm that this was her
account of the incident, even though it was different from what she had written. The Use
of Force form no longer included Corporal Holmon as being on the scene as well as
another officer.

34. Plaintiff refused to sign the form since it was not the same account that she had
submitted of the incident, and Corporal Holmon angrily told Plaintiff that she didn’t need
Plaintiff to sign it. She also directed another officer to sign his Use of Force form,
without having him read it, and he also refused to do so. Plaintiff and the other officer
were shocked that she would do something like that, as it would have constituted fraud
and/or misrepresentation.

35. On January 10, 2017, Plaintiff had a meeting with Lieutenant Gillespie and
Corporal Holman to discuss Corporal Holman mistreating Plaintiff.

36. On February 17, 2017, Plaintiff went to internal affairs about the aforesaid use of
force incident. However, internal affairs refused to take any action.

37. When Plaintiff had the interview with a Sergeant Pinkerton about the incident, she
was told by him that her commanding officer told him to question her about why she
didn’t sign the Use of Force form. Plaintiff was shocked her commanding officer was

allowed to interfere with the questioning of the interview.
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38. After explaining the situation to the sergeant, he stated to Plaintiff that he even
agreed with Plaintiff that he would not have signed the documents since the original
content had been changed. However, nothing changed after the meeting,

39. On or about November 15, 2017, Plaintiff was served two sets of 18s, the
violation code, for failing to properly fill out the Use of Force form and for violating the
Handcuff Directive. They first attempted to serve her the documents without the presence
of a union representative — but Plaintiff demanded a union representative be present.
They also denied her copies of the violation documents, even though it is protocol to
request and receive them.

40, On May 18, 2018, Plaintiff was brought up to the Board of Inquiry to defend her
case. While the Use of Force violation was thrown out, Plaintiff was reprimanded for the
violation of a handcuff directive, which was never issued in the first place — upon
information and belief, a handcuff directive was falsified after the incident by Plaintiff’s
supervisors. No documentation of the directive has ever been produced.

41. During the Inquiry, Lieutenant Gillespie lied to say that Plaintiff did not get along
with anyone in the department, which was false, as Plaintiff had been working in the
police department for 23 years and had previously gotten many positive evaluations from
her commanding officers, including Lieutenant Gillespie.

42. Upon information and belief, Corporal Holman also told the Board that she is able
to change the information on the Use of Force form as she sees fit, which is untrue. The
Use of Force form filled out by Plaintiff should only include the information that she saw
and did, and as she is the person to sign the form, should not have been changed by the

corporal.
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43. About a few months after the hearing, Plaintiff received her evaluation back from
her superiors and was surprised to find that they had given her a negative evaluation. She
believes it was retaliation for having been relieved of wrongdoing during the hearing and
because she had previously filed complaints against her superiors. They had marked on
the evaluation that Plaintiff does not get along with her colleagues, which was not true.

44, On March 11, 2019, Plaintiff approached Corporal Zacharcenko (Badge #8387)
for FMLA (Family Medical Leave Act) leave from work from March 19™ to the 20™, so
that she could have a procedure done pertaining to her rheumatoid arthritis condition on
March 19th to the 20th and have enough time to recover. Corporal Zacharcenko approved
it.

45. However, on March 18th, Plaintiff suffered an asthma attack and contracted a
virus. She was so sick she hardly left the bed. She had to reschedule her procedure but
continued to use the time she already took off to recover from her illness.

46. On or around the 19th of March, Sergeant St. Onge (Badge #401) and Licutenant
Bolognone (Badge #290) called Plaintiff’s phone. However, Plaintiff was too sick to take
any calls. When they could not reach her, they proceeded to call her son and her sister, as
well as other family members.

47, Officers were sent to Plain‘;iﬂ’s house for a wellness check as they claimed that
she did not show up for work and had not answered her phone, despite her having given
them notice of her absence and having it approved.

48. When Plaintiff returned to work on March 26th, 2019, she was lectured for not
returning the call by Lt. Bolognone and was told that an investigation would be made

about her absence, and that Plaintiff had been “AWOL’d.” Plaintiff was confused and
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shocked by what he was saying as she had obtained approval for her FMLA leave from
Corporal Zacharcenko. When she refuted her claims and explained the situation to Lt.
Bolognone, she told her that they would rescind the investigation and AWOL days.
Plaintiff requested a memo to prove that the investigation was rescinded but never
received that memo.

49. Upon information and belief, they still retained notes on Plaintiff’s file that she
had been counseled on the incident, indicating that Plaintiff had committed wrongdoing
in the incident. Plaintiff was displeased to hear this, as she had followed procedures and
properly requested FMLA leave before obtaining approval from Corporal Zacharcenko.

50. On August 15, 2019, Plaintiff was assigned to the female cell block. Defendant,
Corporal Holman made physical contact with Plaintiff on her way towards the cell block.
Corporal Holman then stated with sarcasm, “Oh, T thought I hit the chair.” Plaintiff
responded, “You know the difference from hitting a chair as opposed to a person.”
Corporal Holman then stated again with sarcasm, “Well, are you hurt? Did I hurt you?”
With a smirk on her face Corporal Holman touched Plaintiff’s arm and said, “Well if [
hurt you I apologize.” The rest of the shift Corporal Holman continued to come back to
the cell block area snickering. Upon information and belief there are cameras all
throughout the unit, which captured the incident.

51. The actions of Defendants have caused Plaintiff to suffer fear, distress, upset and
financial loss.

52. Plaintiff has filed a cha;‘ge of discrimination with the EEOC,

STATEMENT OF CLAIMS

COUNT I - CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATION
42 U.S.C. § 1983




53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Case 2:19-cv-05105-PBT Document 1 Filed 10/31/19 Page 15 of 21

RETALIATION FOR OPPOSITION TO ILLEGAL POLICIES

Plaintiff incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs as if fully set forth at length
herein.

Defendants took the aforementioned adverse actions against Plaintiff in retaliation to her
participation in the protected activity of refusing to falsify use of force forms.

As aresult of Defendants’ actions as aforesaid, Defendants have denied Plaintiff the right
to the same terms, conditions, privileges and benefits of her employment agreement with
the City of Philadelphia Police Department, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981.

Such violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 is actionable against the City of Philadelphia, a
municipal entity, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983,

Said retaliation against Plaintiff has affected Plaintiff to her detriment.

Said retaliation would detrimentally affect a reasonable person under similar
circumstances.

Said retaliation exacerbated the already hostile work environment to the point of a crisis.
Said violations were done intentionally and/or knowingly with malice or reckless
indifference and warrant the imposition of punitive damages.

As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983 Plaintiff
has suffered the damages and losses set forth herein and have incurred attorneys' fees and
costs.

Plaintiff is suffering and will continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary damages
as a result of Defendants’ retaliatory acts unless and until this Court grants the relief

requested herein.
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The wrongful acts and conduct of Defendants were done with deliberate indifference to
the statutory and constitutional rights of Plaintiff.
As such, Plaintiff has and continue to suffer damages as set forth herein.

COUNT II - WHISTL.EBLOWER LAW
43 P.S. LABOR § 1421, ET SEQ
RETALIATION FOR OPPOSITION TO WRONGDOING

Plaintiff incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs as if fully set forth at length
herein.

Plaintiff took actions to oppose falsifying use of force forms, which meets the definition
of “wrongdoing” as defined in 43 P.S. Labor § 1422,

Defendants took the aforementioned adverse actions against Plaintiff in retaliation for her
participation in the protected activity of refusing to falsify use of force forms. Said
retaliation has affected Plaintiff to her detriment.

Said retaliation would detrimentally affect a reasonable person under similar
circumstances.

Said violations were done intentionally and/or knowingly with malice or reckless
indifference and warrant the imposition of punitive damages.

As a direct and proximate result of Defendants” violation of 43 P.S. Labor § 1421, et seq.,
Plaintiff has suffered the damages and losses set forth herein and have incurred attorneys'
fees and costs, fo which Plaintiff is entitled to compensation,

Plaintiff is suffering and will continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary damages
as a result of Defendants’ retaliatory acts unless and until this Court grants the relief

requested herein.
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The wrongful acts and conduct of Defendants were done with deliberate indifference to
the statutory and constitutional rights of Plaintiff.
As such, Plaintiff has and continue to suffer damages as set forth herein.
COUNT III
42 U.S.C. §1983
FIRST AMENDMENT VIOLATION & Monell: Rights of Speech to Petition
Plaintiff incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs as if fully set forth at length
herein.
Plaintiff engaged in a protected activity; the government responded with retaliation; and
the protected activity was the cause of the retaliation.
Plaintiff was retaliated against for refusing to falsify use of force forms and acting as a
whistleblower, and/or accuser of other police officers.
Defendants caused Plaintiff to suffer retaliation by their wrongful conduct all in violation
of the First Amendment of the United States Constitution, actionable through 42 U.S.C.
§1983, et seq.
Prior to the events described herein, Defendants developed and maintained policies,
practices, procedures and customs exhibiting deliberate indifference to the Constitutional
rights of persons within the geographic and jurisdictional limits of City of Philadelphia,
which caused violations of Plaintiff’s constitutional and other rights.
Specifically, Defendants retaliate against police officers who refuse to falsify use of force
forms, and act as whistleblowers.
The above described acts or omissions by Defendants demonstrated a deliberate

indifference to the rights of citizens, such as Plaintiff, and were the cause of the

violations of Plaintiff’s rights as set forth herein.
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81. Plaintiff suffered harm due to Defendants’ conduct.

COUNT IV
ADA VIOLATIONS

82. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all prior paragraphs as if fully set forth at length
herein.

83. In addition to and/or in the alternative, the foregoing adverse employment actions taken
against Plaintiff constituted retaliation for Plaintiff’s lawful requests and exercise of
rights under the ADA.

84, The foregoing actions of Defendants created a hostile work environment that was severe
and pervasive and that altered the terms and conditions of Plaintiff’s employment.

85. Further, the PPD failed to accommodate Plaintiff’s disability or perceived disability and
failed to engage in a constructive, interactive process concerning same,

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment in her favor and against Defendants, together
with interest, costs, punitive damages, attorney’s fees and such other and further relief as this

Honorable Court deems just, including equitable injunctive relief,

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial as to all issues so triable herein.

[remainder of page left intentionally blank]
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BY: /s/ Matthew Weisberg
MATTHEW B. WEISBERG, ESQ
Attorney ID No. 85570
DAVID A. BERLIN, ESQ.
WEISBERG LAW
Attorney 1D No. 314400

7 South Morton Ave. 19070
Morton, PA

610-690-0801

Fax: 610-690-0880
Attorneys for Plaintiff

DATED: 10-28-19

BY: /s/ Brian R Mildenberg
BRIAN R. MILDENBERG, ESQ
MILDENBERG LAW FIRM
Attorney ID No. 84861

1735 Market Street, Ste. 3750
Philadelphia, PA 19103
215-545-4870

Fax: 215-545-4871

DATED: 10-28-19

Respectfully Submitted,

-
BY: (5‘? M %%\/m‘f
GARYSCHAFKOPF, ESQ
SCHAFKOPF LAW, LLC
Attorney ID No. 83362

11 Bala Ave

Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004
610-664-5200 Ext 104

Fax: 888-238-1334
Attorney for Plaintiff

DATED: 10-28-19
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EXHIBIT A
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